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CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). . . Good evening, thank you for joining us here at the Kihei Community
Center. My name is Mike White, I'm the Chair of the Budget and Finance Committee and I have
some help introducing the other Members this evening from Don Couch, your able representative
from the Kihei, Makena and Wailea area...Don.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good evening. Thank you, Mike. Good evening, everybody, and
thank you for joining us tonight. Joining us on this hearing from my...on my left is from
Wailuku is Councilmember Mike Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha, everyone.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Next to him from Kahului is Councilmember Don Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Next to me is Council member from Molokai, Stacy Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Then this is Budget Chair, Mike White and next to him is from Lanai,
Budget Vice-Chair Riki Hokama. And next to Councilmember Hokama is Council Chair Gladys
Baisa from Upcountry. And then next to her is Councilmember Elle Cochran from West Maui.
And last but not least at the end of the table is Council Vice-Chair Bob Carroll from Hana.
Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Don. And this evening we also have on my far left Committee Secretary,
Tammy Frias; Legislative Analyst, Michele Yoshimura and where is.. .and Josiah is over by the
sign-up desk. And from our offices we have Adrienne Nalette and Susan Clements over here
from Don's office.. .Don Couch's office I should say. And Arthur Suyama at the sign-up desk
from Member Crivello's office. Troy Hashimoto in the yellow shirt from my office. And
Neldon Mamuad from Don Guzman's office, there in the back.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Morris.
CHAIR WHITE: And Morris from Bob Can oll's office. And as you know we will be holding district
meetings in all of the districts. So tonight is our night to hear from you, what your concerns are
and we look forward to hearing testimony from a wide range of folks tonight. And appreciate
your taking the time to come and share your thoughts with us. Please make sure you turn off
your cell phones, like we just did. And for those of you who've signed up, we'll be providing
three minutes of testimony and then we'll give you an additional minute to finish up. Please
state your name for the record and if you're representing an organization please name the
organization as well. Please be sure to speak directly into the mic because we are recording this
and we'll have to produce minutes so we want to make sure you name is spelled correctly. And
upon completion of your testimony the Members of the Committee may have questions so please
stay at the podium for just a moment. And with that we're ready to call our first testifier.
-
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ITEM BF-1: PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2014 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI
(CC 13 100)
-

CHAIR WHITE: I get my glasses on...very small writing and our first testifier from MEDB is Robert
Shiffer. Robert.
. • .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

MASTER SHIFFER: Hello and thank you for your time. My name is Robert Shiffer, and this segment
of the MEDB I'm here on behalf of is the Youth Alliance, a fairly dignified segment I've
probably been a part of for four years now and for as far as.. .over those four years has merited
my high regards. We've been to places and met people and learned a fair amount about
over those four years that I can't fathom in another manner has been executed as well. All have
taken place from Maui and a recent example of a place we've been to is Wailuku town where
we've gone around and toured a few small businesses. Met with the owners among other
employees and they gave us a delineation of the businesses what they do, services they offer and
publications such as Facebook and other ways to keep in contact with them. Other areas on
Maui we've been to recently include Monsanto and the Pacific Disaster Center and we continue
to meet at such locations at a monthly basis. And I do once more thank you for your time and I
hope my laconic speech was ample.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Robert. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
very much. Our nest.. .next testifier is Joshua Henkel, representing Best Buddies, and he'll be
followed by Kiana Saia.
MASTER HENKEL: Hi my name is Joshua, J, o, s, h, u, a. I'm in the sixth grade, I'm the sixth grade
leader of Best Buddies. My Buddy's name is Keaton, he's the best friend I've ever had. I'm
here to tell you all the reasons why I love Best Buddies. Best Buddies to me is a good way to
hang...have fun with the people I know and love. Me and Keaton have done lots of stuff. Like
we went to a food testing place at The Shops of Wailea, we served lots of people. We also
helped to clean the park and then an Easter egg hunt. Best Buddies is also a chance to meet new
people. This.. .meet new people, so far I've met a lot of new people this year. Best Buddies is
the best because if I hadn't joined I don't think I would have ever met Keaton and missed out on
a lot of fun things. So please, keep funding us so that other kids can have the same experience.
Thank you for your time. Now I'd like to give you an artificial.. .article from The Maui News
last Sunday's paper.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Joshua. Good job. Our next testifier is Kiana Saia, a student at Hui
Malama. Will be followed by Leomana Morondos, I believe.
MISS SAIA: Okay...do I start now?
CHAIR WHITE: Go ahead.
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MISS SAIA: Okay. I'm Kiana Saia and I'm 13 years old and I have been attending Hui Malama
Learning Center since the beginning of the school year. The reason I came to Hui Malama is
because I kept getting into trouble in my old school and kept hanging out with the wrong crowd.
What I enjoy most about Hui Malama is the fact that we can really talk to our teachers about
what's going on at home and in our lives. And another reason I like Hui Malama is the art
classes. When we have art class it's really my time to shine In class we learn how to make
murals and print t-shirts. Another thing I like is going on field trips, I like going out and working
with my hands. I've changed in various ways since coming to Hui Malama. I've started to come
to school more often. I've grown more respect for my elders and people around me. Since
coming to Hui Malama I've started helping out more around my own home. Hui Malama has
helped me prepare for my own future in many ways. One way is by providing career
development classes. Career development has helped me look up the details, needs and
requirements to get into my dream college. They also help me realize my full potential and what
my goals and dreams are. And one of mine is to go to the Navy and help people. Thank you for
your time and supporting my school.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Kiana. Hold on, just a second. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Okay, thank you Kiana. Our next testifier is Leomana Morondos followed by Roxanne Manly
MASTER MORONDOS: Do I start?
CHAIR WHITE: Go ahead.
MASTER MORONDOS: Hi my name is Leomana, I'm 15 years old. I currently attend Hui Malama
Learning Center and started there at the beginning of the school year. I came to Hui Malama
because I had a difficult time at my old schools. I also got into a lot of trouble. I enjoy how we
don't only learn by talking about things but we learn by doing them hands on. For example, we
go to different farms and learn how to grow our own food and be sustainable. I also enjoy
learning about Hawaiian culture with Uncle Bula. Like different chants, laau, Hawaiian
medicine and alelo Hawaiian language. Since I have been attending Hui Malama a lot has
changed about me. I go to classes and I have better grades and a better attitude. It's easier for
me to study because I don't get frustrated like I would in a big classroom. Hui Malama also
teaches me life skills like how to be sustainable and grow my own food. They also give us
learning options for different careers and help us to look for jobs that match our interest. Thank
you for funding Hui Malama Learning Center, without your support we wouldn't be able to do
all the things that we do.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you very much, Leomana. Any questions? Thank you very much. Next is
Roxanne Manly followed by Christopher Morales.
MS. MANLY: My name is Roxanne Manly and I'm testifying because of MEO and I take the bus into
many appointments, medical shopping and I really appreciate it and don't know what I'd do
without it. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Our next testifier is Christopher Morales followed by Anosha Tatum.
MASTER MORALES. Hello, my name is Christopher Morales, I'm a member of Kihei Youth Center.
I'm in fifth grade and I'm ten years old. I enjoy the Kihei Youth Center because I can hang out
with my friends and the staff members. I think the Kihei Youth Center is a safe place to be.
When the Kihei Youth Center's program is about to end I take the bus that picks you up and
drops you off, called MEO. I learned all about drugs and alcohol and how they're bad for you.
Please keep on funding our Kihei Youth Center so I have a safe place to be.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you very much. Anybody, questions? Thank you very much, Christopher.
Our next testifier is Anosha Tatum, I'm not sure if I'm pronouncing that right.
MISS TATUM: Hello, my name Anosha Tatum and I'm a member of the Kihei Youth Center. I like
going to the Kihei Youth Center because I love how the staff members help me to understand my
homework better and give me advice to make better choices in my life and to tell other kids so
they can be inspired too. The Kihei Youth Center is a great place to learn new information I
never experienced. I hope you will keep funding the Kihei Youth Center because I find it a very
safe environment to be. I am also grateful for the MEO bus because without it I wouldn't have
another way to get there.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Members, any questions for Anosha? Seeing none, thank you very much
for coming. Our next testifier is Ed Ginoza followed by Karen Walker. Ed...oh there you
are.. .behind the podium.
MR. GINOZA: Chairman, Members of the Council, my name is Ed Ginoza. And I'm a member of the
Board of Directors for Hui Malama and I'm also the Program Chair. I'm also a former public
school teacher and a parent of a graduate of Hui Malama. My daughter actually eventually went
on to college and got a degree in chemistry. But anyway, as a public school teacher I found that
we weren't able to meet the needs of all of the students. In other words, we can't have one size
fits all. And at Hui Malama we've been able to instill a philosophy which is different than what
we did at public schools. And that is we try to deal with the whole child, starting with their basic
needs, their career, future and doing lot of things that are hands on instead of just strictly
academic. At the same time we try to meet their academic needs but I think more important that,
it's really important that we deal with their whole child, starting we try to change their attitudes.
But also we're trying to teach them to be little bit adapt to society. Because a lot of them come
with problems just as most kids do. But I think the small classes and our philosophy has helped
a lot of the kids grow and hopefully become useful citizen. I'd also like to commend the Council
for taking a look at more as to what the budget does instead of waste it, try to always try to cut
the budget. My philosophy always has been that Maui County has probably one of the most
efficient counties that I have ever been in. And I hope you'll look at programs instead of just
saying that we need to cut because times are tough. Sometimes we have to decide do we pay
now or do we pay later. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Ed. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Our next
testifier is Karen Walker followed by MaryArm Jehness.
MS. WALKER: Hello, I'm Karen Walker and I'm a special education teacher at Lokelani Intermediate.
My classroom is made up of students with severe disabilities who typically don't have a chance
to get out in the community and so I'm asking you to keep funding Best Buddies at Lokelani
Intermediate. Best Buddies provides opportunities for my kids to engage in meaningful
friendships for the school. It gives them somebody that they can go to and give a high-five to or
eat lunch with or hang out on the playground in an environment that they typically don't get a
chance to do. I think Lokelani in particular has had a reputation as being a tough school
although I think that's unfounded. And what I know that Best Buddies provides is a chance for
them to learn acceptance and compassion for those students who are just a little bit different.
And so for that reason I'm asking you to continue funding Best Buddies. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Any questions, Members? Okay. Thank you. Next testifier is MaryArm
Jehness.
MS. JEHNESS: Aloha, my name is MaryArm Jehness, I'm a teacher at Lokelani Intermediate and I'm
the Faculty Advisor for Best Buddies. Our intermediate program Best Buddies couples general
education students with students as Ms. Walker just discussed, individuals with intellectual
developmental disabilities. We pair up for one-to-one friendships, they make a commitment to a
school year where they at least once a week will get together, have lunch as she said. Maybe
they play video games together, maybe they.. .just drop each other a note or there's a sign in area
and a place in Karen's room where they can go in and just hang out, listen to music. We do do a
program once a month depending on what the month is, we had an introductory program Meet
Your Best Buddy in the beginning of the year followed by Halloween, they all bring food, they
love to eat, they love to sit down and talk about their day, their weekend. And it's so nice to see
that we no longer have invisible students on campus. We have students that are blending in with
our general education students and that form great friendships that have lasted at least a year.
Many of our students carry on into the high school and get involved with those programs. So I
come today asking you to please support the Mayor's request to help support our Best Buddies
program at Lokelani Intermediate. Mahalo.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Any questions, Members? Thank you very much, Ms. Jehness. Our next
testifier is Michael McCormick followed by Kathleen Mumford.
MR. MCCORMICK: Good evening, Budget Chair White and the distinguished Council members, and
today I want to at least get a chance to welcome Stacy Crivello and Don Guzman, our newest
Council members, thank you for coming tonight. As the State Director of Best Buddies, I'm
really privileged to work in our schools throughout the State of Hawaii, but one of our first
chapters you're hearing from tonight is Lokelani. Lot of the kids from the Kihei area also are in
our Best Buddies program at Maui High School. And it's a privilege, Lokelani just won an
award at our Leadership Conference held every year at Indiana University and was recognized as
one of the top ten middle school Best Buddies programs in the world. And we're in 50 countries
-7-
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too so it's a real privilege, but the main gratitude I want to share is with the teachers and the
students that get involved in this program. It's totally volunteer and the.. .Josh that you heard
speak a little earlier, it's pretty awesome and it's sometimes a little scary when a student without
a disability gets paired up with the special needs student. There's a whole period of adjustment,
but the program is making a big difference and we hope to get this program at every school. As
maybe some of the members of this local community heard, there was a real tragic incident that
happened at Kamalii where a little girl with autism was picked on. She had her friend at the
school that came to her defense that was beaten up. And our program isn't at Kamalii but we
hope it will because a big part of the Best Buddies Program is to really end bullying at the
schools. And for many years students with disabilities have been the brunt of the a lot of
bullying. So our program we've been doing community awareness programs throughout all the
schools in Hawaii that we're in. Currently we're in 13 schools, six of those here on Maui where
the kids have been doing public education, little seminars at the malls, at their schools to really
spread the word to end the word and that word is a word, it's the "r" word that is sometimes used
towards individuals with disabilities. And we're trying to really remove that so that, that word
isn't used when it's used with an individual. And once again, I just ask you to please support the
Best Buddies program as per the Mayor's request in this year's budget. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. McCormick. Any questions, Members? Seeing none, Kathleen
Mumford will be followed by Aimee Anderson.
MS. MUMFORD: Thank you for having this meeting tonight for us to be able to speak. My name is
Kathleen Mumford, I'm with the UH Maui College and I teach in the health...Allied Health
Department. And I'm here to support the dental program for the Fiscal Year 2014. Health care
as we know is a need for all and the college supports the community in their dental health
services through the Maui Oral Health Center. And there are 29,000 Medicaid people here in
Maui and out of that this last year the dental health serviced 6,800 of those Medicaid. In
addition, they also serviced 1,530 uninsured and of those the majority of them were children.
And so this oral health is so important to us. As a nurse myself, I know that oral health can
afflict people with diabetes, it can.. .it's detrimental for people for heart attacks and it also affects
preterm labor for early laborers. And so, we really need to get children into this system, into
knowing how important dental health is for their whole life. If people don't have dental health
care oftentimes they'll wait until it's really bad and then the only alternative they have is to go to
the emergency room, which is a very expensive alternative to something that could be handled
upfront. So I encourage you to support this part of the program that will benefit the children in
our community Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Ms. Mumford. Members, any questions? Seeing none, thank you. Next
is Aimee Anderson followed by Malia Igarta, I believe.
MS. ANDERSON: Good evening, Council members, and welcome, new Council members. My name
is Aimee Anderson, from 1988 to 2008 I was an Animal Control Officer and the Director of
Animal Control for the Maui Humane Society. Tonight I'm honored to represent SPCA Maui as
one of its founding members and because I'm getting older, hence the glasses. SPCA Maui
-8-
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which stands for the Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Maui is an all-volunteer
non-profit organization that was incorporated in August of 2009. Our mission is to reduce the
birth of unwanted and homeless dogs and cats on Maui by effectively providing pet owners
access to affordable spay/neuter services. Through the use of SNIP certificates, other grant
monies, and donations we are able to offer spay/neuter services for all of Maui County for
whatever the person can afford. The Maui County Spay/Neuter Incentive Program is called
SNIP. SNIP certificates have been available prior to Fiscal Year 1994 serving all Maui residents
equally. Starting in Fiscal Year 2005 funding for the County SNIP Program was placed into the
Animal Management budget. .Program Budget. Historically the SNIP certificates were
available at the Lanai and Molokai police stations, all public libraries and the Maui Humane
Society. Currently SNIP certificates are only available at the Maui Humane Society. In the last
22 months SPCA Maui has delivered over 1,400 low to no-cost sterilization surgeries for Maui's
community In annual 2012, a total of 960 surgeries were provided with SNIP certificate funds
increasing our delivery of service by 25 percent. Last year we asked you, the County Council, to
increase SNIP funding so we could increase our effectiveness within the community You heard
our story, you believed in us and you increased the SNIP monies from approximately 35,000 to
75,000. Mahalo to the Council for hearing us and taking action. Sadly according to the Maui
Humane Society, SNIP money will very soon run out again. Why is the SNIP allocation to the
community going to run out again? SPCA Maui as well as other organizations have increased
delivery of service to the community. The Maui Humane Society now charges an administrative
fee of 7,500 to manage the SNIP Program. And the Humane Society does use half of the SNIP
money for their own in-house surgeries. The $75,000 Maui County appropriated for community
wide use in fiscal year 2013 has effectively been reduced to 33,500. SPCA has developed a
potentially paperless system of administration of the SNIP Program and is prepared to administer
it directly to the community A hundred percent of the County SNIP funds intended for the
community would then directly benefit the community at no administrative cost to the County.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MS. ANDERSON: We ask that you please increase the SNIP funding to 85,000 annually and that you
consider SPCA Maui as the provider administrator of the County SNIP Program. On behalf of
SPCA Maui and our volunteers and supporters and other Board that are here this evening, I
greatly appreciate your time and attention. And SPCA Maui does look forward to
communicating further with you in the near future. Mahalo.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Any questions? Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Ms. Anderson. By any chance, Aimee, do you
have that in writing?
MS. ANDERSON: Which portion, ma'am?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Particularly about the money.
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MS. ANDERSON: Yes, you will have this handout and if you need more specifics...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh...it's probably in a pile somewhere. I'm sorry.
MS. ANDERSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Yeah, it's important.
MS. ANDERSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Cause I was kind of interested in those numbers.
MS. ANDERSON: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
MS. ANDERSON: And if you need additional information, Ms. Gladys, we'll go ahead and provide
that to you as well.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
MS. ANDERSON: You're very welcome.
CHAIR WHITE: Any other questions, Members? Seeing none. Thank you very much. Malia Igarta
will be followed by Jennifer Drout.
MS. IGARTA: Hi, good evening, thank you for coming out and listening to our testimonies. I represent
MEO...sorry...
CHAIR WHITE: You can relax, you're just talking to us.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Name.
MS. IGARTA: And...what was that?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Name.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Your name
MS. IGARTA: Malia Igarta. And they helped me with the Rental Assistance Program. About six
months ago my husband...sorry...was involved in a car accident and from our two incomes
we're down to one income. And he is still on disabled...disability and I had no family and I
didn't know anything about any program and I found MEO and they helped me with three
months' rent. Which helped us to get back on our feet. We have five children and I was worried
- 1 0-
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that my children and I wouldn't have a place, and MEO helped us by and offered other
programs, I think it's a financial literacy. Where it educated us to budget and how important
our. .what was that score?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Credit score.
MS. IGARTA: Credit score. And all that identify theft in their program. And so with that I just ask
that you continue supporting them for future families. I never thought I would be in a situation
like this, you know, and just...with nothing and they was there to help. So if you folks would
continue supporting them and . Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Malia. Any questions? Thank you. Jennifer Drout followed by Hualani
Enos...or Haulani, I'm sorry.
MS. DROUT: Aloha, my name is Jennifer Drout and I representing myself and also the Feline
Foundation of Maui. I also belong to a group here on Maui called the Maui Animal.. .the Maui
County Animal Coalition which represents various different animal organizations on Maui who
are getting together for the common goal of the betterment of Maui's animals. And while we
may not agree on everything, the one thing we all agree on is that there are too many cats on
Maui County, we can all agree on that. And...the other thing we can almost all agree on is that
the spay/neuter resources in Maui County are not enough. We have much more need that is
currently being met right now. As you just heard from Aimee Anderson, the funding for the
SNIP program to help spay/neuter costs more than doubled last year. And even with that we are
going to expend all of those funds before the end of this fiscal year again. If that isn't the
definition of a need, I'm not sure what else is. The cat overpopulation problem on Maui is
getting worse and we need spay/neuter resources beginning with people's pets to help stop that
problem, both feral and owned pets. So I greatly encourage all of you to continue to fund
spay/neuter resources for County...for the County of Maui, and the SNIP Program may be the
answer to that; however, I would also encourage you to consider a low-cost spay/neuter clinic as
perhaps being the most effective and efficient use of funding if we're going to continue to have
to increase the SNIP coupons every year. Additional thought should be given as to whether that
is the most effective use of the County's money for the number of surgeries being done. So that
is more of a long-term goal, I'm sure that can't be implemented next year, so for this fiscal year I
strongly encourage the Council members to continue to increase the funding for spay/neuter
services. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Questions, Members? Seeing none, thank you very much. Haulani Enos
will be next, followed by Monica Courtney.
MS. ENOS: Aloha, Council members. My name is Haulani Enos, I'm the Registrar at Hui Malama
Learning Center. For various reasons the students end up there.. .truancy and what have you. I
strongly support our agency because we can be used as a vessel to carry these students. They
may be lacking in the traditional Department of Education schooling. So they will come to Hui
Malama, they will get on-hand training, they participate in community service projects, across
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the board so we try to take care of the whole person while they are there with us. I'm proud that
I get to be a part of our students' lives even if may only be for one school year. We have had
some for a couple of years, we do eventually get them to their GED and their certificate. But we
appreciate your consideration and your time that you take to listen to my testimony as well as our
two students and our Board of Directors. Thank you so much.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Members, any questions? Thank you very much.
MS. ENOS: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: The next testifier is Monica Courtney followed by Tom Reed.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Hello.
CHAIR WHITE: You brought some back-up.
MS. COURTNEY: Apparently. Aloha, my name is Monica Courtney, my daughter attends that MEO
Head Start program here in Kihei. And we really appreciate everything that you've done and all
the support that you've created for the program and we appreciate all on-going support as well.
It's really helped our family and her get into pre-school ahead of time and getting what she needs
out of the classroom and everything. We do appreciate all the teachers and everything that they
do, and everything provided in the classroom couldn't be provided without the help of you folks.
So we do appreciate that, yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you.
MS. COURTNEY: Mahalo.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, any questions? Seeing none, thank you very much for coming tonight.
Tom Reed will be followed by Jacqueline Ahumada...I believe.. .or Anumada.
MR. REED: Chairman White and Members of the Council, I...I'm glad to be here. I'm President, my
name is Tom Reed, I'm President of Aloha Recycling. And we started that company in 1992 for
the purpose of recycling glass, since that time we've come a long way. The County now has
eight locations on the island for recycling and four of those have HI5 recycling centers as part of
them. The.. .for the four that have the HI5 recycling centers are Haiku, Makawao, UHMC and
here in Kihei. Our company won a contract at the end of 2011 to manage those sites, at least six
of them. And that contract includes the management of the site itself, hauling of the material
that's brought to those sites and managing the HI5 part of it. That contract is a five-year contract
done in.. .until 2016. And during 2012 just to give you a number, the amount of material that
was hauled from those sites was around 2,100 tons. The total cost to the County to do that was
around $60,000 which brings the cost per ton to haul at about $28. A separate contract exists for
the processing of the material, we don't have that contract. So in the budget there are two
separate functions, two separate contracts that need to be funded, and I strongly urge you to do
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that. Recycling is incredibly important, we've been working for 20 years to train our keiki to
recycle. It's good for the planet, it's good for the people. And here in Kihei especially the
people really get into it. We had over all of four sites that do the 11I5, we had around 80,000
transactions occur for people recycling bottles and cans. In addition to that, the people that come
in and they're not there to recycle bottles and cans, is estimated to be another 120,000 times. So
people are really getting into the recycling. It's been stated that the private sector can possibly
take over the activity and the County can be out of it, that's not a clear statement. Recall that I
said the reason we started our business was to recycle glass. It was because in 1992 nobody was
recycling glass because glass is worthless, that's still the case today. If it was all handled by the
private sector, no one would be interested in recycling glass.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. REED: All of the commodities are just that, commodity prices rise and fall. So I encourage you to
continue to support the recycling efforts and support the funding for that purpose. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Members, any questions? Thank you, Mr. Reed. Jacqueline Ahumada
followed by Nancy Johnson.
MS. AHUMADA: Hello, everyone, we want to thank you for taking time to be here and my name is
Jacqueline and her name is Maria . We want to thank you I guess double or twice
because first of all for the MEO Head Start program. He is in it and we just want to say that,
thanks to that program we've been able to work and to... she's going to keep... she's going to...
When we're working we feel good because we know that they're safe at the school and of course
you know their safety is our first concern. And.. .what else.. .we're really happy for that and we
want to thank you so much for the support. We really, really appreciate it and we also want to
say thank you for the MEO program, because thanks to them we've been in a lot of...a little bit
of family problems and Leonardo and them been, they've been very supportive with us. Thanks
to them we are part of 'em is we're still alive and they were the only ones who actually offer us
help. And we really thank you, we're really thankful for that and...thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Members, questions? Thank you very much. Nancy Johnson will be
followed by Nubia Tellez.
MS. JOHNSON: Good evening, I'm glad to have a chance to talk you again tonight. I gave you each a
copy of a picture because I want you to see the results of your work. This is a picture of the
graduates from the Dental Assisting and Dental Hygiene Program last year. We wouldn't have
those programs at the college without the support we've gotten from you. And I'm here tonight
to ask for one more year of support, and the reason we need it so badly is that our clinic is
located on Lower Main Street. We thought we would be moving into the new renovated science
building, but they still haven't moved out of the old one. And so, we will move into that facility
by fall of '14, but until then we still have the cost of the rent and utilities and the upkeep of the
facility on Lower Main. Now what does the facility do? It serves the Maui Medicaid eligible
and uninsured patients and provides dental services. About 6,500 patients, Medicaid eligible
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patients on our rolls, there are actually 29,000 Medicaid eligible people on Maui. And all of the
community clinic has added dental services, they have only have two dentists. We have two fulltime dentists and we have three dental residents. So we have actually five dentists in addition to
our students. So I'm really asking you for this final year of funding, the Mayor's put 250,000 in
the budget. We desperately need those funds to make our ends meet this year.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, any questions? Seeing none. Thank you very much.
MS. JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: And Nubia Tellez will be followed by Skye Coe.
MS. TELLEZ: Hi everybody, my name is Nubia and this is my son Edwin. He's in the Head Start
Program and what I like is that he's.. .he been learning a lot. And he's been coming more
friendly with a lot of children. So please keep support the program. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Skye will be followed by Lorna Blackburn-Stone.
MS. COE: Aloha, Mike White, Council Chairperson and all of our Councilors, I appreciate this
opportunity. This all started when a few weeks ago I tried to recycle some glass and found out
that from the recycling department that you can't dispose of glass that's broken. And that the
Mayor had already put out bids to have the garbage or the recycled material that we're all turning
in processed off of island, which didn't make a lot of sense. So in the meantime there have been
lots and lots of rumors and a lot of people upset about what is going to happen with the recycling
centers. And until a few days ago, the Mayor hadn't really spoken up and said anything about
the costs of the recycling. So I'm here as a citizen of Kihei, of Maui and of the planet saying that
I am fortunate enough to be in the area that is the three can recycle plan. There's a very few
areas that it's located in. And when it started, I think it's been about six.. .well I don't know how
long it's been, maybe it's been about a year. But in the beginning a lot of our neighbors were not
recycling, our recycling bin generally was full. Once the program started and we started using it,
our regular can is down to less than a fourth of what was normally put in there. The recycled
material is full, generally, because my landlord who is not prone to do such things is now putting
palm tree and the compose waste in, I can put my garbage waste in there. And the third can is
for the compost and that is generally full now too. So it is a system that is being used. If the
issue is that it costs more to recycle than it does to dump it somewhere then I would like to find
out if a citizens' committee for creative suggestions as to how to deal with this problem can be
created or how a lot of us people who are recyclers and who haven't taken any steps beyond that
such as coming to meetings like this can actually become involved and make a difference
because it needs to continue. That's all I can say.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you very much.
MS. COE: Yeah.
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CHAIR WHITE: Members, any questions? Lorna will be followed by Mario Frate or Trate, looks like
Frate.
MS. BLACKBURN-STONE: Good evening, Chairman and Council members and women and my
name is Lorna Blackburn-Stone. I'm here to ask you to please think about MEO before you cut
their budget or anything. I am...I'm currently one of their clients, I was just released from
MCCC a few weeks ago. And.. .excuse me...
CHAIR WHITE: Take your time.
MS. BLACKBURN-STONE: Being an inmate, MEO's helped me greatly. They helped me with my
parenting and keeping me in touch with my children by their program and allowing the kids to
come up to the facility. So that we can have our bonding and time to be together even though
it's such a terrible place. When I was eligible for furlough, MEO provided me with rides to
perspective job interviews. They helped me with my résumé, they also helped me to acquire my
birth certificate from the mainland with the new law with the IDs and the driver's licenses. So
now you have to have all this, MEO did that for me and without them I don't know what I would
have done. MEO provided me with my clothing that I needed for work, and shoes. They also
provided me with bus fare, giving me a monthly bus pass until I was eligible to provide one on
my own after working. I'm still with the MEO and tomorrow I'm going to get my driver's
license by using one of MEO's vehicles because I don't have one. My bosses at.. .offered to let
me get my CDL license if I get a driver's license. So that's something I have to look forward to
and everything is getting better through MEO. As an inmate I witness what MEO has done for
other inmates and there is no program, there is no program around for any of the inmates to
reintegrate back into society. And if it wasn't for MEO I would just be another statistic just
going through the revolving door and I really appreciate MEO. And when you...when you're all
together and your looking to see what needs to be cut, I would like you to think twice about
MEO, please. It's helped me and I know it's helped a lot of other people. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you for coming tonight, Lorna. Mario will be followed by Leslie Garcia.
MR. FRATE: . . . (spoke in Spanish). . . Hello, I'm Mario Frate or Frate, it's okay, whatever you want
to say.
CHAIR WHITE: I just taking a stab at it.
MR. FRATE: I say, sorry for my English, so I asking, Mr. Leonardo one more time help me. If it's for
you guys, okay.
CHAIR WHITE: That's perfectly, alright.
MR. FRATE: My name is Mario Frate.
MR. SEQUEIRA (translator for Mr. Frate): My name is Mario Frate.
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MR. FRATE: . . .(spoke in Spanish). . .
MR. SEQUEIRA (translator for Mr. Frate): Since 1980, I've been a residence of Kihei.
MR. FRATE: . . .(spoke in Spanish). . .
MR. SEQUEIRA (translator for Mr. Frate): Me and my family would like to give their support to MEO.
MR. FRATE: MEO and Enlace Hispano.
MR. SEQUEIRA (translator for Mr. Frate): And Enlace Hispano.
MR. FRATE: . . .(spoke in Spanish). . .
MR. SEQUEIRA (translator for Mr. Frate): We.. .this the kind of people that really help people in need.
MR. FRATE: .. .(spoke in Spanish). . .
MR. SEQUElRA (translator for Mr. Frate): Every time somebody needs a...I know that MEO is always
there. I know.. .next door neighbor there's always MEO's helping him out.
MR. FRATE: . . .(spoke in Spanish). . .
MR. SEQUEIRA (translator for Mr. Frate): MEO is always there when we need it.
MR. FRATE: . . .(spoke in Spanish). . .
MR. SEQUElRA (translator for Mr. Frate): In my particular case.. .1 went to MEO to ask for help to
interpret and translate some documents that would be able to help me out for me to become a
U.S. citizen and apply for my citizenship.
MR. FRATE: . . .(spoke in Spanish). . .
MR. SEQUEIRA (translator for Mr. Frate): And the kind of documents that I have and provide for
MEO to.. .and I ask them to translate and you gotta keep in mind that we come from countries
that where they don't care if it's readable or not, the documents so it was very difficult to be able
to read this particular documents that it offered to us.
MR. FRATE: . . .(spoke in Spanish). . .
MR. SEQUEIRA (translator for Mr. Frate): ...magnify.
MR. FRATE: ...magnify...
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MR. SEQUEIRA (translator for Mr. Frate): Magnifying glass. And I see them. . . (inaudible). . .to help
him to translate the document to use a magnifying glass in order to be able to read that old
document.
MR. FRATE: . . .(spoke in Spanish). . .
MR. SEQUEIRA (translator for Mr. Frate): And in this case.. .in order to be able to read and translate
the documents with a magnifying glass so we would be able to have a complete and appropriate
translation interpretation of documents so we'd be able to present to immigrations individuals.
MR. FRATE: . . .(spoke in Spanish). . .
MR. SEQUElRA (translator for Mr. Frate): I'm very positive and I'm sure that for many people it's
very difficult to be able to pay for this kind of services they provided at MEO.
MR. FRATE: . . .(spoke in Spanish). . .
MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. SEQUEIRA (translator for Mr. Frate): I know for a fact that the people at my next door neighbor,
they're 80 years old, the MEO bus they leave, they come over and pick him up and take him I
don't know where but they also bring him back home.
MR. FRATE: That's very important, they are not Spanish, they are Japanese. . . . (spoke in Spanish). . .
MR. SEQUEIRA (translator for Mr. Frate): I believe that...
MR. FRATE: . . .(spoke in Spanish). . .
MR. SEQUElRA (translator for Mr. Frate): I believe that MEO besides my need that I needed, I know
for a fact that it helps and provide services for many people in the community
MR. FRATE: . . .(spoke in Spanish). . .
MS. YOSHIMURA: Four minutes.
MR. SEQUEIRA (translator for Mr. Frate): MEO people is the one that actually help out in a daily
basis and daily need and provide whatever services that there and they always there when we
need it.
MR. FRATE: . . .(spoke in Spanish). . .
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MR. SEQUEIRA (translator for Mr. Frate): I need and I know I believe that community of Kihei
definitely need MEO services.
CHAIR WHITE: Are you just about done?
MR. FRATE: I'm sorry?
CHAIR WHITE: Your four minutes is up. If you could wrap it up.
MR. SEQUEIRA (translator for Mr. Frate): . . . (spoke in Spanish to Mr. Frate). .
MR. FRATE: . . .(spoke in Spanish). . .
MR. SEQUEIRA (translator for Mr. Frate): ...(spoke in Spanish to Mr. Frate)...
CHAIR WHITE: It has been very good but...
MR. FRATE: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: We need to keep everyone on the same rough time schedule.
MR. FRATE: Okay. Just the last one, you guys are the only...you guys are the only people who think
they can...you guys can help them. Cutting off the subsidies to MEO to take it out the money I
think is not the solution. The solution is for you guys who you.. .who are.. .who can do it. Could
you please help this people and it's more, they need more people to help more people. That's it,
thank you very much.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Our next testifier will be Leslie Garcia followed by Lehuanani
Huddleston-Hafoka.
MS. GARCIA: Aloha, good evening, my name is Leslie Garcia. I'm the Administrative Assistant
Youth Specialist at the Kihei Youth Center. I'm here on behalf of the Youth Center, also as a
community member and as a parent. At the Youth Center we partner with various programs that
help us to facilitate the needs of the community and a huge partnership that is vital to us is the
MEO Youth Transportation Program. With this program we are able to.. .they are able to bus
children from their school to our center and then back various routes. And without that there's
many, many children who would not be able to participate in the programming that we have
there without the youth trans.. .services. Also, they provide us with field trips during our
summer and spring breaks. So that's key to children who have never been Upcountry, who have
never been to Maalaea, who've never been anywhere else. Their able to experience that because
of MEO Youth Transportation services. We also partner with the Maui Food Bank and through
the Maui Food Bank we're able to feed...give food boxes to working families who are in need
and are or are displaced at the moment. We have some families who have become displaced on
the borderline or are homeless. And through the Maui Food Bank and through...us at the Youth
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Center we're able to help fill that gap and provide the need. And the County of Maui is
really.. .we're the bridge and you guys are the glue that keep it together. And you're the support
that help us bridge the need and the services. So we greatly appreciate your funding and support
and ask you to please consider...continuing funding us and the various community partners. So
that we can help all of us collectively achieve the goals, a sustainability and having a healthy
community Thank you so much for your time.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Ms. Garcia. Any questions for the testifier? No, you're off the hook.
Lehuanani will be followed by Joanne Gabot?
MS. HUDDLESTON-HAFOKA: Okay. Aloha, my name is Lehuanani Huddleston-Hafoka, I'm the
Executive Director of the Kihei Youth Center. And I speak on behalf of our youth members,
their families, their Board of Directors and our community supporters. Back in February of
1983, Kihei Youth Center was formally recognized as a non-profit organization and had
officially begun serving the youth of Maui. With over 30 years of youth services thus far, Kihei
Youth Center has served over 10,000 youth between the ages of 8 and 18 years old. In 1983, I
was a 13 year old youth member and of course, since then, I have the honor of becoming the
Executive Director. So if I may say that, as a testimony to the Kihei Youth Center, they have
helped form leaders in our community, civic-minded people and provided a safe place for our
youth since 1983. We could only have accomplished this because of the County of Maui.
We've also been blessed with other grantors and donors who have also made our services a
reality. With that said, I would like to humbly thank the County of Maui and ask for your
continued support so that the Kihei Youth Center can continue to provide the much needed youth
services for our community so that our children can grow to be happy, productive and
contributing citizens of Maui. At this time I would also like to thank the County of Maui for
assisting or...for
. assisting two wonderful organizations that KYC could not do without. And one
in particular is the MEO Youth Transportation. If it wasn't for the MEO Youth Transportation
many of our kids would not be able to come to the Youth Center nor would they be able to get a
ride home. And not only are they providing a bus service, they really, really are caring and
genuine individuals who care about the kids and to ensure that they are getting home safely.
Another organization we'd like to ask the County to continue supporting is the Maui Food Bank.
As Leslie had testified, Maui Food Bank has now more than ever been very important to our
families of the Kihei Youth Center. We have many families that do not qualify for welfare
services because they're like a dollar over. But these families through my experience are one of
the families that are hurting the most. That they can barely keep food on the table, yet they are
most of them are two family working support system. So we are able to deliver or provide
food...food boxes. Another element that we do at the Kihei Youth Center and thanks to Maui
Food Bank is to provide daily snacks for our kids who otherwise would not have snacks. And
again, these are the kids who come from working families. We also provide a free lunch on
every vacation day that we have at the Kihei Youth Center, we also provide a soft breakfast. So
we know we are providing a much needed component in a child's life. But most importantly, we
are providing a safe place for our kids ranging in ages again of eight and eight...8 to 18 years
old. And if it wasn't for the County of Maui, stemming back to 1983 we would not be able to do
what we do. So I humbly stand here and ask you to please support and to continue funding the
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Kihei Youth Center as well as the Boys and Girls Club, Paia Youth Center, Hana Youth Center,
Molokai Youth Center, and Lanai Youth Center. 'Cause together, yeah, we can all make a great
difference in our community You have happy kids, you have a healthy community. So, thank
you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Lehuanani. Any questions, Members? Thank you.
MS. HUDDLESTON-HAFOKA: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Our next testifier is Joanne Gabot followed by Michael Reed Gach.
MS. GABOT: Hi. Hello, my name is Joanne Gabot and I'm here to testify for the Maui Oral Health
Center. I am a dentist and the Co-Clinic Director of the Maui Oral Health Center. A couple
weeks ago, our staff was informed that there was a high probability that our clinic will be closed
due to financial reasons. We were devastated and in disbelief, especially because a few days
prior to that announcement, we were on the cover of The Maui News for providing...we were
providing free dental service to about 30 Micronesians from the afterschool tutoring program at
the Iao United Church of Christ. This is just one example of how vital we are to the community
When our staff was informed about the possible closure, we were not just concerned about our
jobs, our livelihood, our families, but we were concernly... sincerely concerned about the impact
on our patients, the community and the dental residency program. We are one of three dental
community clinics in the island and we have over 8,330 patients. If we were to close, we're
concerned about where are patients would go. The other clinics are full, furthermores, if we
were to close what would we do with the patients that have ongoing dental care. For example,
we pulled out a lot of teeth on some patients, where would they go and get good dentures that at
our low costs? What about their ongoing treatment plan? These are just some of the concerns
that we have. Moreover, if our clinic should close we would lose our dental residency program
which is associated with the Lutheran Medical Center in New York. Every year we select two
post grad residence that are here on Maui for one year to help serve the community. And in
return they get proper training for...with their dental skills. This residency has been a gateway
to recruit dentists in Hawaii. Our recent graduates are working and they're practicing in Hana,
one of 'em in working in the jail, they're MedQuest providers. One of 'em Lutheran resident,
they're... she's actually the Director in the Community Clinic in Molokai. I believe in the
Oral.. .Maui Oral Health Center because I was a graduate from there, from that residency
program. And I stayed here to help the Maui.. .the community of Maui. So on behalf of the
Maui Oral Health Center I would greatly appreciate your support, your continued support so that
we can continue to serve the patients and the community Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Members, any questions? Our next testifier is Michael Reed Gach
followed by Alfred Wolf.
MR. REED GACH: First of all I want to thank the Council members for listening to all of us and our
concerns. It really has touched my heart and it really means a lot to me that you're in touch with
the people. This meeting is fantastic and the fact that you bring us together and you listen to us
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is a real tribute to you and I thank you. My name is Michael Gach, I'm here because I love to
recycle and I'm very disappointed, dismayed, shocked that the Governor...no that the Mayor has
recently said the private sector should do the recycling and we'll just close down all the recycling
centers. We need more recycling, there's a tremendous need in Maui to recycle. I don't need to
preach to the choir, you've been to Safeway and to Costco and to Walgreens and Wal-Mart and
you know how much plastic and bottles and cans and newspapers and cardboard, it just goes on
and on. We need to recycle this stuff and not add to our landfill. Because when we land...you
know...you...it just makes, I'm sure a lot of sense to you. That when we have more and more
landfill, its property which is of great value and the more landfill, it takes a lot of money to
maintain the landfill. And we don't want our aina to become full of junk. So we want to reduce
that and so I pray that you will see that it is a value that we step up to the plate as a County to
provide the recycling centers that my goodness we already have in place. We don't have to build
them and we have them and the people are using it. And I believe that if we rely on the private
sector, we're going to be recycling less, we need more. That the private sector is going to just go
for the buck and there's going to be certain areas of Maui that they will neglect. And then those
people are going to.. .you have to add more to the landfill. That's irresponsible, that hurts my
heart, I love this land. And I feel a responsibility, I'm sure as Council people you do too.
So...I...in terms of recycling I hope that we develop a green waste pickup and that we recycle
more different plastics, and we utilize the private sector and get them involved in our public
recycling programs. You know this is a small island and...
MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. REED GACH: ...and there's.. .and for the landfill to increase, for the price of real estate and for
the price of what it takes to recycle, it's worth it. To involve our children for instance, to the
different stages of recycling would just be fantastic and to...as a volunteer program and for them
to learn about recycling and the cycles of life. Let's keep our recycling centers, I hope that
you'll continue to support public recycling. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Gach. Our next testifier is Alfred Wolf followed by Cameron
Peterson.
MR. WOLF: Hello, I'm Alfred Wolf, I'm a taxpayer. And as a taxpayer I'd like to let you know some
of my preferences on how you spend your...spend my money and it's so really nice to see you
here tonight so as you get an idea how this community goes. However, I would like you to take
it farther, we're in the 21 st century now where Amazon knows exactly how you spend your
money and they feed you information to get that and have you spend more. Let's have the
County do this, when you pay your property tax, why can't I tell the County what my
preferences are? If I'd like more police, fewer potholes, more MEO, less recycling, the
electronics are there to do it quickly, easily, so that you would know what these citizens would
like and then you can respond to it. So I encourage you, find a way to use that, I don't know of
another organization that is, but Maui County could be the first. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you.
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MR. WOLF: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Mr. Peterson will be followed by Jessica Yeager.
MR. PETERSON: Hi, thanks for this time, my name is Cameron Peterson. I'm the parent of four
children, our youngest is Juliarma Nuinuilani Peterson and she is in the Head Start Program here
at Kihei. She's our fourth child but she's also the fourth child we've had that's gone through
Head Start. All four of them have because of our financial situation, I've some medical issues,
my wife is a kindergarten teacher, one of the ten kindergarten teachers at Kihei Elementary. And
I can't...I just want to tell you I can testify to you how important Head Start has been for our
family personally and have also seen personally the effect for hundreds of their classmates as
they've gone through. Study after study has shown that spending money early on in a child's life
is much more efficient than trying to fix problems later. There's so many things that are good
about Head Start, it's not just the preparing them intellectually for school but actually preparing
them socially which is sometimes much more important. I've talked to my wife about her
kindergarten class and the more social problem she has for kids that have come without any
schooling before anything that come in, that's taking time away from teaching the other children.
I can tell you how incredibly impressed I've been with the teachers at Head Start. I mean, I
know what my wife goes through with kids that are a year older. And I see what they do with
kids that are actually two years younger in some cases and they're not doing it for the money.
Okay, they don't get paid that much, they use resources efficiently. And actually my testimony
is she's our last child to go through kids.. .Head Start we don't have any more, we won't be
doing any more. So the funding for the future doesn't benefit me or my wife or my kids at all.
But I have seen the wonderful things that's helped other people. And also, I've talked to my
wife, she's not able to be here today cause she's with our four kids at wrestling, trying to help
them with that. But she has asked me to pass on a little bit of information that she's seen that
kids.. .that she's seen the kids that who have gone through Head Start Preschool Program
have.. .the effect it's had on them and they've been just as prepared as kids who've gone through
private preschool. We looked into doing private preschool cause we weren't sure we're going to
qualify even with six in the family and a kindergarten teacher's.. .first-year kindergarten
teacher's salary. We still barely made it and that's only because they took out our health care
cost. And so we were looking into private preschool, there's no way we could afford it how
much it is. I think it's so important to be able to provide these services not only to the haves who
can afford private preschool but also to the have nots who in many cases need it more because of
their situations. I've seen it help families, I've seen it in the ways that the County contributes,
it's helping parents that were able to work and provide rather than having to stay home or find
unsuitable daycare. And I just know, I've seen it in so many different ways help.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Members, any questions? Seeing none, thank you very much for your
testimony. Jessica Yeager will be followed by Marie Thomas.
MS. YEAGER: Good evening, my name is Jessica Yeager and this is Jean Lee, we are both dentists
here on Maui. And tonight we're here to testify on behalf of the Maui Oral Health Center. And
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Jean and I we both completed the residency program that the Maui Oral Health Center provided
three years ago. And it provided that additional training that we really needed before we entered
private practice. And if Maui Oral Health Center cannot find the funding that it needs to remain
open, not only will this vital part of our community close but also the program will not be able to
remain here in Maui. Aside from this, I'd like to reiterate how important the Health Center is to
providing treatment to a very underserved population here on Maui. You've already heard the
statistics tonight of how many people the Health Center provides service to. If it were to close
there would be a lot of patients that we're not be able to provide care for. The underserved
population would have even more limited access to care which would increase the wait time in
order to get...to see a dentist. The population that's really going to suffer is our keiki, they're
going to have more dental emergencies. The emergencies are both painful, they can be life
threatening and it also increases the number of days of school missed. So for these reasons and
many others we'd really encourage you to help provide the funding that Maui Oral Health Center
needs to stay open. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Any questions, Members? Seeing none, thank you very much. Marie
Thomas will be followed by Adam Burke.
MS. THOMAS: Good evening, Council Chair Baisa and Finance Chair White, I feel like I'm sort of
preaching to the choir here, because you...most of you have been here longer than I have and
probably know as much about Hale Kau Kau as I do. My name is Marie Thomas and I'm sort of
the Interim Development Director, was the Development Director and I'm helping out for right
now. I just thought I would share a couple things with you and I wanted to welcome
Councilmember Crivello and Councilmember Guzman even though I'm mad at you...not really,
just kidding. Right now, Hale.. .as most of you know Hale Kau Kau feeds the hungry every day
of the year, every evening a hot nutritious meal. Right now we are feeding between a 100 and
140 people each evening. In addition, to that we deliver meals to the homebound elderly, sick
and disabled and we're delivering between 60 and 70 meals each evening. In addition to that, we
collaborate with the Keolahou Hawaiian Church in providing emergency food supplies to
families that are in crisis. And last year, we.. .during let's say partially because of your funding
that you were able to give us, we were able to serve almost 57,000 meals during Fiscal Year
2012. So I want to thank you for that and I want to thank you for the funding that you've
provided for 2013. And ask you to just please continue because unfortunately the people who
need our help are still here and.. .it's not a cute story, it's sort of says where we're all going at
some point. I think you all know about the homeless and those people who are in need of our
help with meals because they might be the working poor and they can pay their bills, they can
have a roof over their head perhaps, but by the end of the month particularly they may not have
the money to buy food. So we're helping a wide range of people in that way. We also.. .with the
homebound meals, there's a couple, she was a school teacher and he was with Goodwill and they
both were very healthy and at the time, this is several years ago, they were able and when they
moved to Maui, they wanted to help out and they came to Hale Kau Kau and they delivered
meals for us once a week. And now because of changes in their health, they're both receiving
meals. And so she came actually to our recent fundraiser and talked to our guests about how
important it was that first they gave and now they're on the receiving end. And so, I ask you to
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just please continue to fund Hale Kau Kau cause the need is there. Thank you and I brought our
brochures, most of you know but I thought I would just bring 'em anyway, especially for the two
new people. Thank you so much.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Ms. Thomas. Any questions? Adam Burke will be followed by William
McKeown.
MR. BURKE: My visual aids. So first of all thank you so much to all of you for your time and just for
putting together these forums. I'm sure it makes an already long day that much longer and most
importantly for the support you give to so many worthwhile organizations throughout Maui
County. I'm here as a representative of Maui Academy of Performing Arts. We have applied
for a line item grant for educational performing arts programs. And I'm here as the Director of
Operations for the organization, but actually these two are the main reason that I am here. These
are our children, Nathan and Veronica, so I'm also here as a very proud papa. I want to take a
second just to talk about the facts for Maui Academy of Performing Arts or MAPA. Because we
found there's a lot of people don't know the breath of what MAPA does throughout the Maui
community now. We've been here for 38 years but a lot of people still don't know that MAPA is
a non-profit or 501(c)3 non-profit organization. Our focus is really educational performing arts
reaching kids throughout Maui County. And right now our programs reach over 16,000 kids
annually throughout Maui. There are really a couple areas of focus, one of those is art
educational theatre tours that brings live theatre directly into Maui County's schools. What we
found is a lot of schools no longer have the funding to.. .buses and bring the kids out to events.
So we actually send a troop of professional actors into the schools Countywide and they bring
topics like bullying, tolerance, diversity, friendship, directly into the schools and engage the kids.
And we make available customized study guides that are written by a masters in elementary
education so the teachers can take those messages back and integrate it into the classroom
curriculum. Another thing we have is called Voices and it's a program that uses drama to
improve literacy and reading comprehension. And we hear time and time again from the
teachers this is especially with No Child Left Behind if they've had to teach more and more to
the test. That using drama is a way to get these kids to engage with material has dramatically
improved their retention and their attention to the subject matter. Basically we go in and an
instructor will use whatever they happen to be using as their reading material and help them to
act out those stories. And it has had a tremendous impact on their literacy skills. That program
reaches over 3,000 kids every year here on Maui. All the programs we do in the schools align
with common core standards so there right in lockstep with...the teachers are teaching. And so
we make sure that it aligns with the Hawaii Department of Education standards. We've also
been expanding the program into high schools, we're finding that, that's another underserved
population. So for example, when we did a production of Macbeth this year, we found that a ton
of the high schools have Shakespeare as a regular part of their curriculum. So we did outreach
programs, where we went out and talked to the kids and brought actors from the cast and actually
it made the stories come alive for them. The other thing that a lot of people do know about us is
we have an academy program and dance, drama and music. We have over 100 classes every
week between our locations in Wailuku and up west in Lahaina. As well as weekly and multiweekly camps every school break, including over the summers we have two six-week drama
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camps, including one for teens where last summer we had 50 teens who devoted six hours a day
for six weeks of their summer learning drama skills and actually -MS. YOSHIMURA: Three minutes.
MR. BURKE: --putting out a production of Narnia at the end. We offer financial assistance for all of
our programs, including a lot of work with Title 1 schools. But the most important thing to me is
really what it does for these guys and for our kids. So I wanted to take a second to ask Veronica
and Nathan to tell just what MAPA means to them. Veronica. Talk loud.
MISS BURKE: Why I like MAPA is I love dancing and I have a lot of friends there.
MR. BURKE: Buddy.
MASTER BURKE: When I go to MAPA I feel really comfortable because when you enter MAPA you
really get to know everybody there and we're just like one big family. So it's...it's really like a
home for me.
MR. BURKE: Thanks very much for your time.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you Mr. Burke. Next is William McKeown followed by Mike Moran. I don't
see William McKeown. Okay, we'll go on to Mike Moran. Did he leave also?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: He was here. I guess he left.
CHAIR WHITE: Next would be Bob Babson.
MR. BABSON: Thank you so much for being here tonight to allow people to testify. My name's Bob
Babson, I'm testifying as an individual. I have two ideas regarding the budget, both of which I
believe will save money for the County. I believe it is time to commence universal tax.. .trash
collection, the same as Honolulu, Los Angeles and many other cities already do. All expenses
are paid for by property taxes and all residential citizens get a 96 gallon trash can automatically.
The benefits would be a cleaner Maui County, there'd be far less trash along the highways and
dumped on private and public property. The Department of Environmental Management would
no longer have to bill everyone $216 every year. And hence the County would save money by
eliminating this function. The $216 would amount to pennies more per thousand in residential
property taxes and would now be deductible on Federal Income Tax returns as an itemized
deduction. This would only be for residential zoning and not for commercial zoning. Please go
to www.opala.org to visit Honolulu's website that fully explains the extent of their trash
collection services. They not only pick up trash, but they have bulky item collection for all
neighborhoods on a regular schedule which includes refrigerators, washers, dryers, beds, et
cetera. And they have manned drop-off facilities which include paint, tires, batteries, poisons
such as garden pesticides, electronics, TVs, computers, CFL light bulbs et cetera. If you have
any questions regarding a particular detail, I'm sure the Honolulu Department of Environmental
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Services would be happy to answer them, just call them. Also, the Mayor could appoint a small
team to go to Honolulu and tour their facilities and learn exactly how they do it, and report back
to the Mayor, the County Council and the citizens of Maui. My second idea which I believe
would save a lot of money for the County would be to sell the Waihee Municipal Golf Course
since it loses money every year. Taxpayers should not be subsidizing a golf course, the money
could be better used to improve infrastructure. And the new owner of the property would be
paying property tax which would increase revenue to the County. Thank you so much for being
here.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Babson. Members, any questions? That usually gets some questions,
by the way...or at least comments. The next testifier is Debra Greene followed by Lizbeth
Congora Chavez.
MS. GREENE: Aloha and thank you for coming to Kihei and soliciting feedback and input from us, I
really appreciate that. I...my name is Debra Greene, I live in Kihei, in Maui Meadows. And I
am a rabid recycler and a very strong supporter of all things green and not just because my last
name is Greene. I am into sustainability and everything that has to do with conservation and
saving the land. So when I heard that the Mayor was proposing to do away with recycling and
heard that it was because of how much it costs and that it actually costs more to recycle than it
does to put things into the landfill. I think that we have to also include the hidden costs that
don't get factored in when we're crunching numbers like that, and some of the hidden costs are
things like the cost of taking up precious land on Maui and using it as a trash dump basically and
the cost of what happens when the landfill gets full down the road. And the cost of sending
mixed messages to the community because when.. .in Maui Meadows when we started with the
curbside pickup the three can plan, where they pick up office waste paper, they pick up
cardboard and they pick up cans and newspaper and everything except for glass. And every
week...well maybe not every week but frequently we would get in the mail these little cards that
would say you're doing so great, congratulations you just saved "X" number of tons from the
landfill and so we got all this encouragement and it was really exciting and it felt really good.
And now all of a sudden what? Like it doesn't matter anymore, that's a mixed message. And
there's also a mixed message imbedded in telling us that the Mayor supports sustainability on the
island and then to not have recycling be a really top priority, that doesn't make any sense to me.
And there's also the cost of Maui in the public eye, because recycling is in the collective
consciousness right now, everybody's recycling and everybody's paying attention to it especially
young people. And so if they come here on holiday and they see that recycling isn't happening
here, it just doesn't send a very good message, doesn't make us look very good. And Maui is
very much in the public eye and we need to pay attention to those things. So and finally the
other hidden cost is just for the future, the future generations and the future of our aina. So
please consider continuing to support the recycling. Thank you very much.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Ms. Greene. Yes, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Ms. Greene.
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MS. GREENE: I'm sorry, a question. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm not sure.. .apparently it's a few people haven't been able to see the
paper this morning or I know this press release just came out today as well.
MS. GREENE: I did see that, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: There's a press release that dispels the rumors and there hasn't been
anything taken out of the budget for recycling. So just so you know that there's nothing been
taken out of the budget that...
MS. GREENE: Yeah, I mean obviously there were reasons for concerns to be raised in the first place
and I know that for example there was an interview with the Mayor that was published in print
from Maui Tomorrow where the Mayor was quoted as saying something like we are shutting
down all of the recycling, that is a fact. So I don't...I don't exactly know who's responsible for
rumors but...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And he.. .it was, been dispelled in this press release.
MS. GREENE: Alright.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So just to give you a heads-up. Thanks.
MS. GREENE: Interesting. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Our next testifier is Lizbeth Congora Chavez. And the next would be Juana Garcia.
Lela Sherman.
MS. SHERMAN: Aloha, I'm Lila Sherman.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm sorry.
MS. SHERMAN: That's...
CHAIR WHITE: It's Lila.
MS. SHERMAN: I'm delighted...I love Lila name name Lila Sherman. I did come about the
recycling and I...being here tonight I have discovered how many wonderful services that are on
Maui that affect my family. MEO is a gift. I not only run a business or I should say the business
runs me. But I also take care of a gentleman who is partially disabled, semi-invalid and I thank
Hale Kau Kau. I used to go.. .1 had to be at my store, I had to make dinner, I had to do this, I had
to do that and then somebody told me about Hale Kau Kau. What a gift that is to me and the
Oral Health Center another gift that I just sort of took for granted and I'm so thankful that I'm
here for that. I also know...I've read the press release but I want to tell you that what hasn't
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been discussed is, yes we can throw that stuff in the landfill but the idea is not only do we
recycle, we turn the recycling into other things. The Mayor's talking about our disposable
society, that's disposing, that's not reusing when something's recycled it's reused and replaced.
And we've got to take this planet that's saying goodbye. Because we aren't taking
responsibility, and we have to take responsibility. So yes, I read the press release, thank
goodness we've got funding this time, but we do have a future on Maui, it's not just this year.
And I hope, I hope you take that into consideration. Thank you so much and thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Ms. Sherman. Our next testifier is Judy McCorkle followed by Charles
Head. And Mr. Head is the last testifier that has signed up so if anyone else would like provide
testimony that hasn't yet done so, please sign up at the desk. Go ahead Ms. McCorkle.
MS. MCCORKLE: Thank you very much, Council members, thank you for time and for your
generosity. And I am always amazed at the giving nature of our community of Maui. I am so
grateful to live in a community that takes such good care of its people. And that is.. .1 support all
these programs that have testified before this evening. With respect to the recycling, I
respectfully submit that some of the confusion has been created by the Mayor himself. He is on
video saying, we are definitely shutting down the recycling centers. That video is a YouTube
that you can still access, it was March 25 th and that is one of the things that has created a lot of
confusion in the community I think what happened is he realized how passionate this
community is about recycling, and since that time he is trying to recover his dignity. And I am
all.. .I'm most supportive of that and I'm most supportive of his position on saying that he is not
shutting down any of the recycling centers. We have spent 25 years creating a consciousness in
this community. Our keiki have been educated to recycle is important to the aina that we
recycle. While I understand that it may...there may be some value to privatizing some of our
services, I think that has to be done very thoughtfully. A private company who spends millions
of dollars building a facility to handle our trash will want to make a substantial profit. We do not
have any kind of oversight for a private company providing a public service to this community
If you take all of the competition out of recycling and trash collection, we don't know what the
unintended consequences of that may be. I can guarantee you that if we turn all of our trash
collection over to a private company, there will be a financial consequence of that. I don't know
exactly who will pay for that and I don't know what technology. There are a number of
technologies and there have been substantial improvements in the last 25 years. So I think that it
is important that we look at the alternatives and see what is the best for the community I would
just encourage you that, that be a very thoughtful process. And I think that at best the Mayor has
rushed this process a bit. Any, any private company that comes in to this community is going to
take at least five years to build a facility. We do not want to scrap a program that has been
working well for 25 years. The other thing that I would suggest is that when he talks about
privatizing recycling, I believe that anyone who has gone to the public or to the County-owned
recycling center in Kihei and has also had an experience at the private recycling center, would
testify to the difference in the quality of the services in those two facilities. I had people tell me
that they would not recycle until the end of the day, because as soon as they recycle, they could
then go home and take a shower. Now I can tell you under the contract that would, issued 18
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months ago, those facilities have changed substantially. And it is no longer a place that you go
and feel like you need to go take a shower after you leave there.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you very much. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none. Our next and
final testifier is Charles Head from Fairmont Kea Lani.
MR. HEAD: Aloha, my name is Charles Head, I'm General Manager at the Fairmont Kea Lani. I'd like
to thank you for the opportunity to be here, Budget Chair White and Council members, it's a
pleasure to be here. I'm speaking in support of continuation or expansion of funding for Maui
Visitors and Convention Bureau in the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget. As you're aware, the tourism
industry continues to maintain positive growth in Hawaii, with Maui being the second most
popular island for visitors. While this is a very positive story which has been of great benefit
when other industries have been lagging, it should be noted that in most cases hotel industry
performance continues to lag the achievements of our historical peak years of 2006, 2007.
Bridging this gap remains of critical importance to the health of the industry and will allow the
additional economic benefit of further investment in our resort and destination infrastructure and
continued growth in employment. The recent impressive and continual growth in visitation in
Maui is in large part due to the efforts of the Maui Visitors and Convention Bureau. MVCB
utilizes funding received from Maui County to effectively market, promote and sell the island of
Maui both nationally and internationally. This provides Maui Nui with cohesive and
complementary activities with our other islands. Looking further afield the tourism industry is
more competitive than ever. Clients consistently reference to us new and emerging destinations
that are competing very hard for our visitors. In addition, other more established markets such as
Mexico and Europe, are recognizing the value that tourism provides to their own economies and
they're specifically targeting the capture of our business. As a resort property, the Fairmont Kea
Lani, Maui has leveraged MVCB by participating in sales, conventions and media blitzes in key
mainland markets. We've also utilized advertising co-opportunities to stretch our budget and
promote our resort alongside the island of Maui. We frequently partner with MVCB to host
qualified travel writers and provoke.. .promote high profile ...excuse me... awards such as
Conde Nast Traveler's World's Best Island in our communications. Finally, we continue to
utilize the marketing research and brand positioning that MVCB has invested into influence our
own communications strategy. It's important to consider that the Maui County investment in the
MVCB is complemented by many resort partners on the island. In our case, our investment in
promoting the destination and our resort will exceed $5.3 million in 2013. I hope you see the
value to Maui Nui and continuing to fund Maui Visitors and Convention Bureau. Thank you for
your consideration. Mahalo.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Head. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you very
much.
MR. HEAD: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Any further...are there any other individuals who would like to provide testimony?
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MR. REED (from the audience): Chairman White, may I make a response to Councilmember Couch's
comments?
CHAIR WHITE: You may speak to him afterwards. But once you've been up it's, it's your one shot,
but. . .
MR. REED (from the audience): Okay, that's it. All right.
CHAIR WHITE: And we'll be around afterwards if you'd like to chat with us.

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY....
CHAIR WHITE: So I want to thank all of you for sticking out through it for...with us all night long.
And thank you for coming out this evening and please don't hesitate to communicate with us
through the budget process. And you can find the budget online somewhere...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, under the Mayor's heading, it says Budget Office and then
proposed budget.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you and this meeting.. .this public hearing is adjourned. . . . (gavel). . .
ADJOURN: 7:44 p.m.
APPROVED:

MI E WHITE, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
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